
TOWN OF HADDAM 
WETLANDS COMMISSION 

TOWN HALL 
21 FIELD PARK DRIVE, HADDAM, CT 

MONDAY, 28 SEPTEMBER 2015 
SPECIAL MEETING 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
Subject to Approval by the Commission 

 
 
ATTENDANCE 

X Paul Best, Vice Chairman 

A Jeremy DeCarli 

X Dan Iwanicki, Secretary 

A Robin Maule 

X Joe Stephens 

X Mark Stephens, Chairman 

A Tom Worthley 

X Curt Chadwick, Alternate - Seated 

A Mal Gorin, Alternate 

X Jim Puska, Wetlands Enforcement Officer 

X Bunny Hall Batzner, Recording Clerk 

  

  

  

 
 
1. Call to Order & Attendance/Seating of Alternates 
 
Mr. M. Stephens, chairman, called the special meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and all regular and alternate 
members were seated. 
 
2. Show Cause Hearing: 
 
Joseph Mingolello, Contractor and Owner Representative/Agent.  Elke Hoppenbrouwers, Owner.  
Property Address:  5 Ledge Road, Higganum, CT.  Assessor’s Map #72 A1, Assessor’s Lot #61.  
Show Cause Hearing regarding Cease and Desist Order Issued 9-17-15 by Wetlands Enforcement 
Officer.   
 
Joseph Mingolello, contractor and owner representative/agent; Joseph Rini, attorney for Mrs. Hoppen-
brouwers and Mr. Mingolello; John Martucci, engineer, Dutton Associates, LLC, were present. 
 
Mr. Best asked what documentation had been presented to the Commission showing that whoever in 
attendance was actually representing the owner.  Mr. Puska read a letter from Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers, 
dated 4 September 2015 (Exhibit A).  Mr. Best voiced concern over the fact that the letter was not 
notarized.  Mr. M. Stephens asked Mr. Puska to review the letter again as to who it came from.  Mr. 
Puska stated that the letter came from Avanti Development Group, LLC, from Joe Mingolello, from Elke 
Hoppenbrouwers.  Mr. Best questioned the legality of the letter as it’s on Mr. Mingolello’s letterhead and 
whether Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers actually signed the letter.  Mr. Best asked that in the future all documents 
be notarized. 
 
Mr. Puska stated two years ago Mr. Mingolello had submitted an application to bring a detached shed 
over to 5 Ledge Road from a property he owns.  At that time, Mr. Mingolello was advised that he would 
need a wetlands permit as well as zoning and building permits.   Mr. Puska stated that Mr. Mingolello 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
Special Meeting/Show Cause Hearing 
28 September 2015 
Unapproved Minutes  2  

submitted all the paperwork showing the designated location of where the shed was going; however, the 
shed did not end up in that location, but instead attached to the existing cottage, which is now for sale.  
Mr. Puska also stated that the application and building permit became null and void. 
 
Mr. M. Stephens asked if the shed was going to be placed outside the upland review area or if Mr. Puska 
was going to handle the matter as an agent approval.  Mr. Puska stated that the shed was within the 
upland review area; however, in an entirely different area than where it ended up as an addition to the 
existing cottage. 
 
Mr. Puska continued his presentation by stating that after finding out about the deviation from the 
application, Mr. Mingolello was advised that he could no longer work on the addition until the proper 
zoning and building applications were filed.  Mr. Puska stated no paperwork was filed, work began again, 
Mr. Mingolello was contacted again, and at that time a Stop Work Order was issued by Fern Tremblay, 
Building Official.  Mr. Puska stated that two weeks ago, a phone call was received that a lot of work 
(clearing) had been done on the property; that a site visit was held (by Liz Glidden, Town Planner, on 15 
September 2015), that he validated the situation the following day, and a Cease and Desist Order was 
issued (dated 17 September 2015).   
 
Mr. Best asked if there were any deed restrictions on the property.  Mr. Puska stated that the only thing 
that has recently come to his attention, is that the Hidden Lake Association (HLA) will not let anyone add 
on (make the footprint any larger) to an existing building.  Mr. M. Stephens stated that is ancillary to the 
hearing.  Mr. Iwanicki asked if there was any communication from HLA.  Mr. Puska stated that he has not 
received anything from the HLA pertaining to this site; however, they are fully aware of the situation. 
 
Mr. M. Stephens asked Mr. Mingolello and/or his representatives if they agreed that there was no wet-
lands application submitted for the activity that’s been presented.  Mr. Rini stated that no application for 
wetlands was sought in this matter; and that there was a misunderstanding by Mr. Mingolello that the old 
application for wetlands was sufficient to cover what was done now.  Mr. Rini also stated it was only when 
they looked up the initial permit, that they realized that there could be a problem on the permit side.  Mr. 
Rini stated that there’s a different side for the clear cutting and will address that issue when the 
Commission is ready.  Mr. Rini submitted his business card for the record (Exhibit B). 
 
Mr. M. Stephens reviewed the regulations for the Commission and those present.      
 
Mr. Rini stated that he’s the attorney for Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers and Mr. Mingolello; and that Mrs. Hoppen-
brouwers was unable to attend the hearing as she’s in Germany and that was why the letter was pre-
pared.  Mr. Rini also stated that Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers goes back and forth from Germany and will not be 
back for some time.  Mr. Rini addressed Mr. Best’s concern regarding a notarized signature by stating 
that it would have been in German and that he doesn’t know the laws of Germany.  Mr. Best stated that 
he can read German and that a notary is a very high level lawyer type. 
 
Mr. Rini stated that there was the original permit (2011) for the shed.  Mr. Rini stated that he believes they 
are talking about the upland review area, not being in the wetlands or watercourse, and that the house 
itself is in the upland review area.  Using a map, Mr. Rini pointed out the lake and the house (built 1955) 
and stated this creates one issue.  Mr. Rini stated that Article 4 – may fall under an exemption because it 
was work relating to the house.  Mr. Rini stated that Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers had hired a contractor who 
destroyed parts of the interior and that’s when Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers hired Mr. Mingolello.  Mr. Best 
asked if the house was winterized before or became winterized.  Mr. Rini stated that it was partially 
winterized.  Mr. Rini also stated that Mr. Mingolello was hired to try to fix the inside, which has been done, 
but the septic system is no longer compliant.  Mr. Rini stated Dutton Engineering was hired to reengineer 
the system to bring it into compliance. 
 
Mr. Rini stated that the plans were sent to Chatham Health, who gave verbal approval, but did not send 
the specifics until very recently.  Mr. Rini stated that in hearing that Chatham was going to approve, Mr. 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
Special Meeting/Show Cause Hearing 
28 September 2015 
Unapproved Minutes  3  

Mingolello removed some of the trees to get the machinery in for the installation of the septic system.  Mr. 
Rini also stated that there was some shrubbery removed, but that it was lower stuff.  Mr. Rini stated it’s a 
wide area – 35-40 feet across. 
 
Mr. Best asked Mr. Rini if a contractor would normally start work without a written permit.  Mr. Rini stated 
no; however, Chatham had promised the approval and then it took weeks for them to actually process it.  
Mr. Rini also stated that Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers wanted the work done before the winter, have the house 
on the market, and that was what was being done.  Mr. Mingolello stated that Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers’s 
husband had died.  Mr. Rini stated did they do it right, he didn’t think so; but that they didn’t do it wrong 
intentionally. 
 
Mr. Rini stated that there are two pieces to this matter.  1) The earlier permit and whether it was properly 
resolved.  Mr. Rini stated that he’s seen Mr. Tremblay a number of times and never heard that it wasn’t 
properly resolved.  Mr. Rini stated that work has been done in the house.  2) The work done on the 
outside is for the septic repair and that it’s within the upland review.  Mr. Rini stated that the questions 
which normally come up are:  a) will the work change the area significantly (Mr. Rini stated no) and b) are 
we cutting all over the property (Mr. Rini stated no, but some shrubs were removed so the lines of sight to 
the lake are a little nicer).  Mr. Rini also stated that if the shrubs are small enough you’re not violating the 
two inch rule.  Mr. M. Stephens asked what two inch rule.  Mr. Rini stated that there’s a rule in the regula-
tions that indicates anything less than two inches in diameter doesn’t count as clear cutting.  Mr. Rini 
stated there are two parts in the Cease and Desist – 1) working in the upland review where it can be 
regulated without permits, and 2) clear cutting without a permit. 
 
Mr. Rini asked that the Commission to continue the hearing to allow for the gathering of information and 
the submission of an application to allow the Commission to have something in front of them when 
considering both pieces.  Mr. M. Stephens stated a plan with plantings needs to be presented and that 
the plan needs to be agreed upon by the Commission. 
 
Using a map, Mr. Martucci pointed out the existing septic system (located in the notch of house), which is 
not according to code, and the approximately location of the existing septic field.  Mr. Martucci noted that 
the house sits on pilings (no foundation at all).  Mr. Martucci stated as code compliant has they can get, 
they are proposing a 1,000 gallon septic tank for a two bedroom house and a row of leaching system 
down below the system.  Mr. Martucci also stated that as the soils are marginal, fill will be brought in.  Mr. 
Martucci stated that the proposal has been reviewed, but does not believe it has been fully reviewed. 
Mr. Martucci stated that a curtain drain is being proposed to run along the property and drain out at a 
location that was pointed out.  Mr. Martucci also pointed out a sediment fence between the lake and the 
grading. 
 
Sean Wilson, neighbor above the property, asked if the well is shown on the plan.  Mr. Martucci stated 
there is an existing well and pointed out the 75 foot well arc.  Mr. Wilson pointed out the location of his 
septic system and stated that a well was drilled on Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers property without thought of a 
septic system being installed.  Mr. Wilson stated that it was his understanding that the cottage was sea-
sonal and not year round.  Mr. Best asked again if the cottage was winterized.  Mr. Rini stated yes, and 
that Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers was living at the cottage with her husband until his death.  Mr. Wilson stated 
the Hoppenbrouwers have not been there for the 50 years he’s been living in the area; and asked when 
Mr. Hoppenbrouwers passed away.  Mr. Rini stated seven months ago with Mr. Mingolello stating he 
didn’t ask. 
 
Mr. Best asked if a complete permit to install a septic system has been received.  Mr. Martucci and Mr. 
Rini stated no.  Mr. Rini stated it’s a septic repair, but doesn’t believe it’s been fully approved. 
 
Mr. M. Stephens stated if the well is affected, it’s been affected by an existing leaching field and septic 
system.  Mr. Wilson stated it’s his understanding that a well permit was pulled, but there was no permit for 
a trench inspection for the well to be installed.  Mr. M. Stephens stated that he does not want this to stop 
what is taking place; however, it is a point that should be noted by Mr. Puska as WEO/ZEO. 
 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
Special Meeting/Show Cause Hearing 
28 September 2015 
Unapproved Minutes  4  

Mr. Wilson stated that a shed was not moved, but rather a stick built attached to the house structure.  Mr. 
Rini stated that it was the marketing building that was at Fieldstone which was ordered removed from 
Fieldstone; and Mrs. Hoppenbrouwers decided she wanted it as it gave her more room.  Mr. M. Stephens 
stated although a good point, it should be brought up to the building inspector and zoning enforcement 
officer. 
 
Mr. Wilson stated that there are two runoff ditches on both sides of the property with exposed ledge (not 
even three feet down).  Mr. Wilson stated he has seen test holes and that the septic system may be deep 
enough, but questioned it noting that he’s installed septic systems.  Mr. M. Stephens stated Chatham 
Health will need to make a determination in regard to the septic system and the Commission will deter-
mine whether the application is good for the wetlands. 
 
Mr. Wilson voiced concern over the clear cutting noting that there is five cord of wood piled up on the 
property (not two inches and under trees). 
 
Mr. M. Stephens stated that an application will need to be filed; and only after the application is approved, 
will the Cease and Desist Order be removed.  Mr. M. Stephens asked that a certificate of such order be 
filed in the Office of the Town Clerk on the Land Records.  Mr. Puska stated that he did not do so until he 
had direction from the Commission. 
 
Mr. Rini asked Mr. Mingolello to show the Commission where the trees have been removed.  Mr. Mingo-
lello stated that he would like to get rid of the trees as they’re in the way.  Mr. Iwanicki stated it’s not o.k. 
for anything further to be done on the property. 
 
Mr. Iwanicki asked Mr. Puska if the site had been stabilized.  Mr. Puska stated that a silt fence is in place; 
however, he’s concerned as the property was cleared right down to the lake on both sides of the house.  
Mr. Puska asked how it will be restored and how the lake will be protected as there were a lot of trees on 
the property.  Mr. Iwanicki stated that restoration will need to be shown in the plan.  Mr. M. Stephens 
stated that there needs to be a decent planting plan presented.  In terms of activity on the property, Mr. 
Iwanicki suggested that no further activity take place.  The Commission agreed. 
 
Mr. Best noted that there are two significant rain events (Wednesday and Saturday) predicted for the 
week and recommended that Mr. Puska visit the site especially after the second event. 
 
Using the maps, Mr. Rini asked if the wetland boundary was the lake or further in.  Mr. Puska stated that 
the wetland boundary is the high water mark of the lake. 
 
Mr. M. Stephens stated that the only thing that is favorable in this matter is the installation of the silt fence 
as directed by Liz Glidden, Town Planner.  Mr. Iwanicki stated the silt fencing will need to be monitored.  
Mr. M. Stephens stated that it will need to be reviewed to see if additional sediment controls may be 
needed below it.  Mr. Puska stated there isn’t room for addition controls below it. 
 
Mr. Rini asked if Mr. Mingolello will be allowed to repair/reinstall the silt fencing should it be knocked 
down.  Mr. Puska stated yes.  Mr. M. Stephens stated the only thing that will be allowed are the erosion 
and sediment controls and nothing else.  Mr. Puska stated he will be monitoring the site; and if the 
fencing was properly installed, there should be no problems.  
 
Mr. Best asked if the Commission requires that there be a full septic approval from Chatham Health when 
the application comes in.  Mr. M. Stephens stated the Commission will not be looking at a plan unless 
Chatham Health has approved the system. 
 
Mr. Mingolello stated that he’s putting $300,000 into the property and that the only thing the town is going 
to make is $7,000 to $8,000 a year in taxes.  Mr. Mingolello advised the Commission that he’s got a good 
reputation, that he builds classy stuff, and expensive stuff.  Mr. M. Stephens stated that the Commission 
will not being judging the matter on Mr. Mingolello’s reputation, but according to the State of Connecticut’s 
rules.  Mr. Mingolello stated the Commission can do what they want. 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
Special Meeting/Show Cause Hearing 
28 September 2015 
Unapproved Minutes  5  

           
Mr. Puska stated that he received an email from Steve Knauf, Chief Sanitarian, Chatham Health District, 
dated 28 September 2015, as he wanted to know where Chatham Health stood with this matter because  
as of today, a site plan had not come into the office.  Mr. Puska asked Mr. Rini, Mr. Martucci, and Mr. 
Mingolello what they did with the site plan.  Mr. Mingolello asked what site plan.  Mr. Puska pointed to the 
plans that were shown to the Commission by Mr. Rini and Mr. Martucci and asked if they had been 
approved by Chatham Health or if Chatham Health has even seen them.  Mr. Martucci stated that Chat-
ham Health may have seen some of the plan as they did the test pits, but that they had not seen the 
finished plan.  Mr. Puska stated that he was advised by Chatham Health that the only work done was the 
soil testing which was done by Don Mitchell.  Mr. Martucci acknowledged that the plans have to be sub-
mitted to Chatham Health.  Mr. Puska read the email from Mr. Knauf stating that no official site plan has 
been submitted for review.  Mr. Puska explained the process that must be completed prior to the entire 
project being approved.  Mr. Puska stated that the Building Dept. will not look at the application until it’s 
signed and dated by Chatham Health. 
 
Mr. Mingolello criticized Chatham Health by stating they are very slow and that they’re wasting his time 
waiting for an answer.  Mr. M. Stephens stated that Mr. Mitchell is away for two weeks.  
 
MOTION:  Paul Best moved to affirm the Cease and Desist Order issued 17 September 2015 by Jim 
Puska, Wetlands Enforcement Officer to Joseph Mingolello, for property located at 5 Ledge Road, 
Assessor’s Map 72 A1, Lot 61.  Curt Chadwick second.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. J. Stephens asked if a second motion was required for a recorded document.  Mr. Best and Mr. M. 
Stephens both stated yes. 
 
Mr. Rini asked if the Cease and Desist prevents Mr. Mingolello from working inside the house.  Mr. Puska 
stated that he spoke to Mr. Tremblay, Building Official, and that the only verbal approval that was given to 
Mr. Mingolello was that he may finish the roof; and that he is not permitted to do anything inside the struc-
ture.  Mr. Mingolello stated that he doesn’t need a permit to work inside the structure and that Mr. Trem-
blay has no jurisdiction with the roof, the siding, and anything on the inside.  Mr. Mingolello reiterated that 
the town is holding him up.  Mr. Puska stated that if Mr. Mingolello had completed the work two years ago 
when the initial permit was issued, there would be no need for discussion pertaining to work within the 
house.  Mr. Mingolello again blamed Chatham Health for the hold up.  Mr. Puska stated that Chatham 
Health is not the holdup pertaining to the initial permit.  Mr. Mingolello began talking about the shed being 
part of an office, that Mr. Puska had claimed that the septic tank was under the shed, and that Bob 
Tommell, former engineer for the town, gave him the right and that he had provided the paperwork.  Mr. 
M. Stephens stopped the discussion as it was irrelevant to the matter. 
 
Mr. Rini asked if they speak to Mr. Tremblay and he agrees that the inside is not an issue, does the 
Cease and Desist stop Mr. Mingolello from working on the inside.  Mr. M. Stephens stated the inside of 
the house is not a wetland matter.  Mr. Puska stated that zoning has an interest in the matter concerning 
the addition.  Mr. Mingolello stated he would get a list from Mr. Tremblay.      
 
MOTION:  Paul Best moved to approve the requirement that the Cease and Desist Order issued 17 
September 2015 by Jim Puska, Wetlands Enforcement Officer, to Joseph Mingolello for property located 
at 5 Ledge Road, Assessor’s Map 72 A1, Lot 61, be filed in the Office of the Haddam Town Clerk on the 
Land Records.  Joe Stephens second.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Prior to the vote, Mr. Best asked if the Commission had walked the property in the past.  Mr. M. Stephens 
stated that he couldn’t recall. 
 
Mr. Mingolello again asked if he could remove the trees that have been cut down.  Mr. M. Stephens told 
Mr. Mingolello not to touch the trees or do any work on the property until the Cease and Desist Order is 
lifted. 
 
 



Haddam Wetlands Commission 
Special Meeting/Show Cause Hearing 
28 September 2015 
Unapproved Minutes  6  

3. Adjournment 
 
MOTION:  Dan Iwanicki moved to adjourn.  Curt Chadwick second.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Bunny Hall Batzner 

 

Bunny Hall Batzner 
Recording Clerk 
 
 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, 13 October 2015. 


